
City Plan Commission

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to 

the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

Council Chambers, 6th Floor3:30 PMWednesday, June 8, 2022

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

22-0747 City Plan Minutes from 5-11-22

City Plan Minutes 5-11-22.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

22-0748 Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash use located at 3200 E. Express 

Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00), as shown on the attached materials and per 

attached plan of operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in 

the attached staff report and approve attached Resolution (Associated with 

Action Item #22-0749)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_EExpressCt_SUP#6-22.pdf

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_EExpressCt_SUP#6-22.pdf

Attachments:

5. Action Items

22-0749 Request to approve Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash use located 

at 3200 E. Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00), as shown on the 

attached materials and per attached plan of operation, to run with the land 

subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached 

Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for approval)

StaffReport_Peak Car Wash_SUP_For06-08-22.pdfAttachments:

6. Information Items

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 6/3/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21297
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=44bc59c8-a727-41a4-8e26-13368c94bf0e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21298
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cf2a9404-8ccd-4ad4-b04d-9f0ac9232124.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1de3b972-0025-47ca-92d6-635ab287b110.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21299
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84ead176-0c55-447c-9b41-3818a0bbaca0.pdf


June 8, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0750 Overlapping Extraterritorial Plat Approval Jurisdictions

StaffMemo_ETJOverlap_For06-08-22.pdf

ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_BuffersOnly.pdf

ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_EquidistantLines.pdf

ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_Aerial+SectionLines_AgreedUponLine.pdf

Attachments:

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 6/3/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21300
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=85d92d78-602a-43ee-a5ca-bd029d05892f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c5e3bcd-11e1-47c2-aab9-b506d5162bfc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b5e1ef6-c734-41de-b23f-f8816e8c297a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ec6ba28a-2e6d-4f5e-a871-944720d314af.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

City Plan Commission

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed 

to the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

3:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, May 11, 2022

Call meeting to order1.

Meeting called to order by Chair Mayor Woodford at 3:30 p.m.

Roll call of membership2.

Commissioner Fenton appeared virtually and participated via Teams.

Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and UitenbroekPresent: 7 - 

Others present:

Alderperson Nate Wolff, District #12

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, District #13

Ken Edwards, Apostolic Truth Church

Aaron Soto, Apostolic Truth Church

Sam Al-Saadi, Apostolic Truth Church

Liz Rowicki, 4900 N. Altamont Drive

Joanne Rowicki, 4509 N. Windingbrook Drive

Jim Vandenberg, 4803 N. Fallview Lane

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

22-0611 City Plan Minutes from 4-13-22

City Plan Minutes 4-13-22.pdfAttachments:

Palm moved, seconded by Robins, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek7 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Page 1City of Appleton



May 11, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0612 Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment 

#2-22 for the subject parcel located on N. French Road, bordered by E. 

Glory Lane, N. Providence Avenue, and E. Ashbury Drive (Tax Id 

#31-1-7400-00) from future One and Two-Family Residential land use 

designation and Multi-Family land use designation to Public Institutional 

land use designation as shown on the attached map and approve the 

attached Resolution (Associated with Action Item #22-0613)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_ApostolicTruthChurch_CompPl

anAmend#2-22.pdf

InformalPublicHearingNotice_ApostolicTruthChurch_CompPlan+Rezon

ing.pdf

Attachments:

This public hearing was held, and Jim Vandenberg, Liz Rowicki, and Pastor 

Aaron Soto spoke on the item.

22-0614 Rezoning #3-22 for the subject parcel located on N. French Road, 

bordered by E. Glory Lane, N. Providence Avenue, and E. Ashbury Drive 

(Tax Id #31-1-7400-00), including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way, 

as shown on the attached maps, from R-1A Single-Family District to P-I 

Public Institutional District (Associated with Action Item #22-0615)

InformalPublicHearingNotice_ApostolicTruthChurch_CompPlan+Rezon

ing.pdf

Attachments:

This public hearing was held, and no one spoke on the item.

Action Items5.

22-0613 Request to approve Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use 

Map Amendment #2-22 for the subject parcel located on N. French Road, 

bordered by E. Glory Lane, N. Providence Avenue, and E. Ashbury Drive 

(Tax Id #31-1-7400-00) from future One and Two-Family Residential land 

use designation and Multi-Family land use designation to Public 

Institutional land use designation as shown on the attached map and 

approve the attached Resolution

StaffReport_ApostolicChurch_CompPlan+Rezoning_For05-11-22.pdf

Paula Meyer Email.pdf

Neighborhood Brochure From Apostolic Truth Church.pdf

Attachments:

Proceeds to Council on June 15, 2022.

Buetow moved, seconded by Uitenbroek, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Buetow and Uitenbroek5 - 

Nay: Fenton and Dane2 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



May 11, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0615 Request to approve Rezoning #3-22 for the subject parcel located on N. 

French Road, bordered by E. Glory Lane, N. Providence Avenue, and E. 

Ashbury Drive (Tax Id #31-1-7400-00), including the adjacent one-half 

(1/2) right-of-way, as shown on the attached maps, from R-1A 

Single-Family District to P-I Public Institutional District

StaffReport_ApostolicChurch_CompPlan+Rezoning_For05-11-22.pdf

Paula Meyer Email.pdf

Neighborhood Brochure From Apostolic Truth Church.pdf

Attachments:

Proceeds to Council on June 15, 2022.

Buetow moved, seconded by Robins, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Buetow and Uitenbroek5 - 

Nay: Fenton and Dane2 - 

22-0616 Request to approve the dedication of land for public right-of-way for N. 

Lightning Drive, generally located north of Edgewood Drive (C.T.H. JJ), 

as shown on the attached maps

StaffReport_LightningDrive_StreetDedication_For5-11-22.pdfAttachments:

Palm moved, seconded by Buetow, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek7 - 

22-0617 Elect Vice Chair 

Commissioner Uitenbroek was elected as Vice Chair.

Woodford nominated Uitenbroek to be the Vice Chair. Palm seconded the 

nomination. No other nominations were received. Motion carried by 

unanimous consent.

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek7 - 

Information Items6.

22-0618 Set Meeting Date & Time

The City Plan Commission will continue to meet at 3:30 p.m. on Wednesdays of the 

week following Council.

22-0619 Designate Contact Person 

Director Karen Harkness will continue to be the designated Contact Person.

Page 3City of Appleton



May 11, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0630 Neighborhood Program Spring Meeting on Thursday, May 26, 2022 from 

6:00 - 7:30 pm at Wilson Middle School, 225 N. Badger Avenue

appleton.org/residents/neighborhood-programAttachments:

This item was presented.

Adjournment7.

Palm moved, seconded by Robins, that the meeting be adjourned at 4:11 p.m. 

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek7 - 

Page 4City of Appleton



              CEDD (15010) 

     Reprints - 2 

 

 
CITY OF APPLETON  

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

PROPOSED SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Public Hearing to be held before the City Plan Commission on 

Wednesday, June 8, 2022, at 3:30 P.M., in Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton 

Street, or as soon thereafter as can be heard, for the purpose of considering a Special Use Permit. 

 

Pursuant to Sections 23-66 and 23-113 of the Appleton Municipal Code, to consider a 

request by Menard Inc, owner, and Erickson Enterprises LLC, applicant, for property located 

at the northeast corner of Kensington Drive and Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00) to 

obtain a Special Use Permit for a car wash.  In the C-2 General Commercial District, a 

Special Use Permit is required for a car wash. 

 

All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be heard.  

Feedback can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone call.  Any 

questions regarding this matter should be directed to Jessica Titel, Principal Planner, in the Community and 

Economic Development Department at (920) 832-6476 or by email at jessica.titel@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION   COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

APPLETON, WISCONSIN   CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

(920) 832-6468 

 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

 

 

RUN: May 24, 2022 

 May 31, 2022  

   

mailto:jessica.titel@appleton.org


 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

 

OF THE 

 

APPLETON CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 

Dear property owner(s): 

 

The City of Appleton Plan Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on Wednesday, June 8, 2022, at 

3:30 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in Common Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 

North Appleton Street, for the purpose of considering the following proposed Special Use Permit: 

 

 

• Pursuant to Sections 23-66 and 23-113 of the Appleton Municipal Code, to consider a 

request by Menard Inc, owner, and Erickson Enterprises LLC, applicant, for property 

located at the northeast corner of Kensington Drive and Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-

5568-00) to obtain a Special Use Permit for a car wash.  In the C-2 General Commercial 

District, a Special Use Permit is required for a car wash. 

 

• ALDERMANIC DISTRICT:  3 – Alderperson Brad Firkus 

 

 

You are being notified as a policy of the City of Appleton Community and Economic Development 

Department.  All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to 

be heard.  Feedback can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone 

call. The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who makes the final 

decision on the matter. 

 

Any questions regarding this matter should be directed to Jessica Titel, Principal Planner, in the 

Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6476 or by email at 

jessica.titel@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION    COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

       CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

 APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

 920-832-6468 

 

 
Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

mailto:jessica.titel@appleton.org


4-6
00

2

4-6
00

3

4-5
56

8-5

4-5
56

8-7

4-5
56

8-6

4-5
56

8-8

0-5566

0-5704-2

4-5611

0-5704

4-5568-4

4-6024 4-6005 4-6004 4-5567-2
4-5567-3

4-5567-1

4-5566

4-5704-1

4-5704-3

4-5568-9

4-5704-5

0-5568-4

4-5568

331243
0

11
5 11

0

3000

22
1

3300

33333221

32
0

3000

30403030

33293020 3201

A B C D FE H NI J K L

43
3

E COLLEGE AV

E EXPRESS CT

N 
KE

NS
IN

GT
ON

 D
R

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

E WAREHOUSE RD

E COLLEGE AV

C-2

M-2

M-1

R-1B PD/R-3R-2

HW
Y 4

41
E FOREST ST

E NEWBERRY ST

E LOURDES DR

S J
OS

EP
H 

ST

S F
ID

EL
IS 

ST

CTY TK CE

S B
UC

HA
NA

N 
ST

S S
CH

AE
FE

R 
ST

S C
LA

RA
 ST

E COLLEGE AV

CREEKVIEW LA

W KENNEDY AV

W THIRD ST
S C

HR
IS

TIN
E S

T
W KIMBERLY AV

W FOURTH ST

S A
RL

IN
GT

ON
 S

T VAN ROY RDS M
ID

PA
RK

 D
R

E EDGEMERE DR

E CANARY ST

S C
OV

EN
AN

T L
A

MA
TT

HE
W

 ST

LYNN DR

HWY 441  ON RAMP

MI
LK

Y W
AY

EMONS RD

S A
UR

OR
A D

R

TRUMAN ST
RA

DI
O 

RD
E PETER ST

E EXPRESS CT

KIN
G 

CT

S F
RE

DE
RI

CK
 ST

E JULIE ST HW
Y 4

41 Special Use Permit
Car Wash

E. Express Court
Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
6-8-2022

Subject Area

±
0 200 400100

Feet



0-5567-320-5567-12

4-6
00

2

4-6
00

3

4-5
56

8-5

4-5
56

8-7

4-5
56

8-6

4-5
56

8-8

0-5566

0-5704-2

0-5567-1

4-5611

0-5704

4-5568-4

4-6024 4-6005 4-6004 4-5567-2
4-5567-3

4-5567-1

4-5566

4-5704-1

4-5704-3

4-5568-9

4-5704-5

0-5568-4

4-5568

3210 3214 331243
0

11
5 11

0

3000

22
1

3300

33333221

32
0

3000

30403030

33293020 3201

A B C D FE H NI J K L

43
3

E COLLEGE AV

E EXPRESS CT

N 
KE

NS
IN

GT
ON

 D
R

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

E WAREHOUSE RD

E COLLEGE AV

Special Use Permit
Car Wash

E. Express Court
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
6-8-22

Subject Area

±
0 200 400100

Feet



EXPRESS COURT

WAREHOUSE

ROAD

K
E

N
S

IN
G

T
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

DATE REVISIONBY NO.

S
H

E
E

T

P
R

O
J.

 M
G

R
:

D
R

A
F

T
E

D
:

D
A

T
E

:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

D
A

T
E

:

M
R

M

JW
R

2
0

2
2

.0
0

3
4

.0
1

PEAK CAR WASH
DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

FOR

PEAK, INC.
CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

H
C

 S
T

A
L
L
S

 
2

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 S
T

A
L
L
S

 
2

6

T
O

T
A

L
2

8

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
IT

E
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

T
O

T
A

L
 L

O
T

 A
R

E
A

  
5

,3
0

7
 s

.f
.

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

S

2
5

,4
8

4
 s

.f
.

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 A
R

E
A

S

4
7

,6
1

7
 s

.f
.

G
R

E
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

 A
R

E
A

Z
O

N
IN

G
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

Z
O

N
IN

G

C
-2

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T

S
P

E
C

IA
L
 U

S
E

 P
E

R
M

IT
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
S

F
R

O
N

T
1

0
 F

E
E

T

R
E

A
R

2
0

 F
E

E
T

S
ID

E
0

 F
E

E
T

A
L
J

C
-4

6
0

'

S
C

A
L
E

 1
" 

=
 3

0
'

3
0

'
0

'
3

0
'

6
0

'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
 K

IO
S

K
S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 V
A

C
U

U
M

P
U

M
P

 H
O

U
S

E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

D
U

M
P

S
T

E
R

E
N

C
L
O

S
U

R
E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

T
R

A
N

S
F

O
R

M
E

R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
A

R
 W

A
S

H
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

(O
N

E
 S

T
O

R
Y

)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

V
A

C
U

U
M

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

B
A

S
IN

 A
R

E
A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
T

O
P

 B
A

R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
T

O
P

 S
IG

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 6
6
'x

3
3
' 
W

ID
E

IN
G

R
E

S
S

/E
G

R
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

0
3

-2
5

-2
0

2
2

0
4

-1
1

-2
0

2
2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 6
6
'x

8
5
' 
W

ID
E

IN
G

R
E

S
S

/E
G

R
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

T
O

T
A

L
 L

O
T

 A
R

E
A

 

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

G
R

E
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

 A
R

E
A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
N

O
W

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 A

R
E

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

S
IG

N





 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  Menard, Inc. 

 

Applicant:  Tracey Erickson – Erickson Enterprises, LLC 

 

Address/Parcel #:  3200 E. Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for a car wash and self-serve dog 

wash. 

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

The subject parcel is currently vacant and is approximately 3.6 acres in size.  The applicant has filed an 

application for a Certified Survey Map to split the existing parcel into two lots (File #14-22).  The car wash 

will be located on Lot 2 of the proposed Certified Survey Map.  Lot 2 will be 78,408 square feet in size. 

 

On November 15, 2017, the Common Council approved an Official Map Amendment to remove lands 

previously identified for future stormwater pond on the subject parcel.  

 

On July 20, 2011, Common Council adopted Ordinance 153-11, which amended the City’s Official Map to 

officially map land area for a future stormwater pond generally located at the northeast corner of Kensington 

Drive and Express Court.  This action by Common Council was based on a July 10, 2009 report by AECOM 

of the Kensington North Drainage Area and was meant to preserve land in case a stormwater pond was 

determined to be needed.  The Department of Public Works subsequently determined the stormwater pond 

would not be needed and initiated an Official Map amendment in 2017 (see above). 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  The applicant proposes construct a car wash and self-serve dog wash on the subject 

site as shown on the attached development plans.  The proposed development includes the following: 

 

• A 5,307 square foot automated car wash building with a single service bay. 

• Car wash stacking spaces for 24 vehicles are located along the east side of the building with the 

service bay entrance located on the north side of the building.  

• Access will be provided via an existing driveway on Express Court and will be shared with 

Menards and the proposed car wash. 

• Approximately 24 vacuum stations. 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  June 8, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022 

 

Item:  Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #6-22 

June 8, 2022 

Page 2 
 

• Proposed hours of operation are from 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM each day.  

 

Operational Information:  A plan of operation is attached to the staff report. 

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The car wash will be located on Lot 2 of a recently submitted application for a 

two-lot Certified Survey Map (File #14-22).  Lot 2 will be 78,408 square feet in size.  The subject site is 

currently vacant land.  Access will be from East Express Court and will share an existing drive aisle with 

the property to the east. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The site is surrounded on all sides by existing commercial 

development.   

 

North:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the north is undeveloped land and a 

stormwater detention pond. 

 

South:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the south is currently commercial 

(MotoMart gas station with car wash and Subway). 

 

East:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the east is commercial (Menards). 

 

West:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the west is commercial (Mr. Cinders 

restaurant). 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Commercial designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and greenfield 

development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 



Special Use Permit #6-22 

June 8, 2022 

Page 3 
 

Current Zoning and Procedural Findings:  The subject property has a zoning designation of C-2 General 

Commercial District.  Per Section 23-113(e) of the Municipal Code, a car wash requires a Special Use 

Permit in the C-2 District.  The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who 

will make the final decision on the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds vote of the Common Council is 

required for approval. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan Commission 

and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to approve, approve with 

conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and information, other than 

merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements and conditions an 

applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would accept in support of 

a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be reasonable, and to the extent 

practicable, measurable. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards for granting a Special Use 

Permit under Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code:  1. proper zoning district: C-2 zoning allows 

car washes as a special use permit, 2. zoning district regulations: compliance with zoning code regulations 

will be reviewed with the site plan, 3. special regulations: not applicable to carwashes, 4. consistent with 

comprehensive plan and other plans: yes, see above analysis, 5. traffic: applicant will share an existing 

driveway with Menards, no concerns submitted by traffic engineer, 6. landscaping and screening: the 

landscaping will be reviewed with the Site Plan and is required to be consistent with zoning ordinance 

standards, 7. neighborhood compatibility: the proposed use is located adjacent to existing commercial uses 

and near CTH CE, and 8. impact on services: the City has existing utilities, services and equipment in place 

to serve this proposed use).  These standards were found in the affirmative, as long as all stipulations are 

satisfied.  

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the May 3, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above, that Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash located at 3200 E. 

Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00), as shown on the attached materials and per attached plan of 

operation, along with the attached resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the land, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. The owner shall have twelve (12) months from the issuance of the Special Use Permit to obtain a 

building permit and/or occupancy permit for the proposed carwash or Special Use Permit #6-22 will 

expire pursuant to Sections 23-66 (f)(1) b. and c. of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition to ensure the use is established in a timely 

manner. This condition will not be applicable when the building permit and/or occupancy permit 

is issued.  

 



Special Use Permit #6-22 

June 8, 2022 

Page 4 
 

 

2. Prior to the construction of the carwash and building permits being issued, site plan review and 

approval is required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the owner and applicant that they are 

required to receive site plan approval from the Community and Economic Development 

Department prior to receiving building permits from the Inspection Division for the project 

pursuant to Section 23-570(e)4) of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

3. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility, Noise and other Municipal Codes, and all 

applicable State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition assures the applicant understands they must follow the 

City’s Municipal Code and all applicable State and Federal laws which they are required to 

follow while conducting business in the City; failure to follow City, State and Federal 

regulations may result in enforcement action pursuant to Sections 1-16, 1-17, 23-66(f)(5) and 

23-69 of the Municipal Ordinance.   

 

4. Any future expansions of the carwash, changes to the development plans, plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #6-22    

CAR WASH 

3200 EAST EXPRESS COURT 

 

 

WHEREAS, Tracey Erickson, Erickson Enterprises, LLC, has applied for a Special Use Permit for a car wash 

located at 3200 E. Express Court, also identified as Parcel Number 31-4-5568-00; and 

 

WHEREAS, the location for the proposed car wash is located in the C-2 General Commercial District, and the 

proposed use may be permitted by Special Use Permit within this zoning district pursuant to Chapter 23 of the 

Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on June 8, 2022 on Special Use 

Permit #6-22, at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or present written comments and 

other materials at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the Community and 

Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written 

evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a Special Use Permit 

under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing conditions on the 

Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and forwarded Special Use Permit #6-22 

to the City of Appleton Common Council with a   favorable conditional      or       not favorable      (CIRCLE 

ONE) recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and recommendation of the City 

of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on June 15, 2022. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Common Council, 

based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing and Common Council meeting, 

and having considered the recommendation of the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 

 

1. Determines all standards listed under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code are found in the 

affirmative     YES     or     NO      (CIRCLE ONE) 

 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash 

located at 3200 E. Express Court, also identified as Parcel Number 31-4-5568-00, based upon the following 

standards and determinations:  (List reason(s) why the Special Use Permit was denied) 

 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash 

located at 3200 E. Express Court, also identified as Parcel Number 31-4-5568-00, subject to the following 



2 | P a g e  

 

conditions as they are related to the purpose of the City of Appleton Municipal Code and based on 

substantial evidence: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #6-22 

 

A. The owner shall have twelve (12) months from the issuance of the Special Use Permit to obtain a 

building permit and/or occupancy permit for the proposed carwash or Special Use Permit #6-22 will 

expire pursuant to Sections 23-66 (f)(1) b. and c. of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

B. Prior to the construction of the carwash and building permits being issued, site plan review and approval 

is required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code. 

 

C. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility, Noise and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable 

State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

D. Any future expansions of the carwash, changes to the development plans, plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the owner/applicant, 

Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, and any other interested party. 

 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



4-6
00

2

4-6
00

3

4-5
56

8-5

4-5
56

8-7

4-5
56

8-6

4-5
56

8-8

0-5566

0-5704-2

4-5611

0-5704

4-5568-4

4-6024 4-6005 4-6004 4-5567-2
4-5567-3

4-5567-1

4-5566

4-5704-1

4-5704-3

4-5568-9

4-5704-5

0-5568-4

4-5568

331243
0

11
5 11

0

3000

22
1

3300

33333221

32
0

3000

30403030

33293020 3201

A B C D FE H NI J K L

43
3

E COLLEGE AV

E EXPRESS CT

N 
KE

NS
IN

GT
ON

 D
R

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

E WAREHOUSE RD

E COLLEGE AV

C-2

M-2

M-1

R-1B PD/R-3R-2

HW
Y 4

41
E FOREST ST

E NEWBERRY ST

E LOURDES DR

S J
OS

EP
H 

ST

S F
ID

EL
IS 

ST

CTY TK CE

S B
UC

HA
NA

N 
ST

S S
CH

AE
FE

R 
ST

S C
LA

RA
 ST

E COLLEGE AV

CREEKVIEW LA

W KENNEDY AV

W THIRD ST
S C

HR
IS

TIN
E S

T
W KIMBERLY AV

W FOURTH ST

S A
RL

IN
GT

ON
 S

T VAN ROY RDS M
ID

PA
RK

 D
R

E EDGEMERE DR

E CANARY ST

S C
OV

EN
AN

T L
A

MA
TT

HE
W

 ST

LYNN DR

HWY 441  ON RAMP

MI
LK

Y W
AY

EMONS RD

S A
UR

OR
A D

R

TRUMAN ST
RA

DI
O 

RD
E PETER ST

E EXPRESS CT

KIN
G 

CT

S F
RE

DE
RI

CK
 ST

E JULIE ST HW
Y 4

41 Special Use Permit
Car Wash

E. Express Court
Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
6-8-2022

Subject Area

±
0 200 400100

Feet



0-5567-320-5567-12

4-6
00

2

4-6
00

3

4-5
56

8-5

4-5
56

8-7

4-5
56

8-6

4-5
56

8-8

0-5566

0-5704-2

0-5567-1

4-5611

0-5704

4-5568-4

4-6024 4-6005 4-6004 4-5567-2
4-5567-3

4-5567-1

4-5566

4-5704-1

4-5704-3

4-5568-9

4-5704-5

0-5568-4

4-5568

3210 3214 331243
0

11
5 11

0

3000

22
1

3300

33333221

32
0

3000

30403030

33293020 3201

A B C D FE H NI J K L

43
3

E COLLEGE AV

E EXPRESS CT

N 
KE

NS
IN

GT
ON

 D
R

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

E WAREHOUSE RD

E COLLEGE AV

Special Use Permit
Car Wash

E. Express Court
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
6-8-22

Subject Area

±
0 200 400100

Feet









EXPRESS COURT

WAREHOUSE

ROAD

K
E

N
S

IN
G

T
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

DATE REVISIONBY NO.

S
H

E
E

T

P
R

O
J.

 M
G

R
:

D
R

A
F

T
E

D
:

D
A

T
E

:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

D
A

T
E

:

M
R

M

JW
R

2
0

2
2

.0
0

3
4

.0
1

PEAK CAR WASH
DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

FOR

PEAK, INC.
CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

H
C

 S
T

A
L
L
S

 
2

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 S
T

A
L
L
S

 
2

6

T
O

T
A

L
2

8

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
IT

E
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

T
O

T
A

L
 L

O
T

 A
R

E
A

  
5

,3
0

7
 s

.f
.

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

S

2
5

,4
8

4
 s

.f
.

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 A
R

E
A

S

4
7

,6
1

7
 s

.f
.

G
R

E
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

 A
R

E
A

Z
O

N
IN

G
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

Z
O

N
IN

G

C
-2

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T

S
P

E
C

IA
L
 U

S
E

 P
E

R
M

IT
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
S

F
R

O
N

T
1

0
 F

E
E

T

R
E

A
R

2
0

 F
E

E
T

S
ID

E
0

 F
E

E
T

A
L
J

C
-4

6
0

'

S
C

A
L
E

 1
" 

=
 3

0
'

3
0

'
0

'
3

0
'

6
0

'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
 K

IO
S

K
S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 V
A

C
U

U
M

P
U

M
P

 H
O

U
S

E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

D
U

M
P

S
T

E
R

E
N

C
L
O

S
U

R
E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

T
R

A
N

S
F

O
R

M
E

R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
A

R
 W

A
S

H
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

(O
N

E
 S

T
O

R
Y

)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

V
A

C
U

U
M

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

B
A

S
IN

 A
R

E
A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
T

O
P

 B
A

R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
T

O
P

 S
IG

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 6
6
'x

3
3
' 
W

ID
E

IN
G

R
E

S
S

/E
G

R
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

0
3

-2
5

-2
0

2
2

0
4

-1
1

-2
0

2
2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 6
6
'x

8
5
' 
W

ID
E

IN
G

R
E

S
S

/E
G

R
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

T
O

T
A

L
 L

O
T

 A
R

E
A

 

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

G
R

E
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

 A
R

E
A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
N

O
W

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 A

R
E

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

S
IG

N





 

 

 

 

 

 

 
TO:  City Plan Commission 

   

FROM: David Kress, Principal Planner  

 

DATE:  June 2, 2022 

 

RE: Overlapping Extraterritorial Plat Approval Jurisdictions 

 

 

 

As described in the Subdivision Ordinance, the City’s extraterritorial plat approval jurisdiction 

includes the unincorporated area within three miles of the City.  However, recent incorporations 

by the Village of Fox Crossing and Village of Greenville have resulted in areas of extraterritorial 

jurisdiction overlap.  Each village has a 1.5-mile jurisdiction beyond their respective municipal 

boundaries. 

 

A process is outlined in the Wisconsin Platting Manual for determining review authority when 

extraterritorial jurisdictions overlap.  This process involves establishing a line through the area of 

overlap that is equidistant from the boundaries of each incorporated municipality.  In applying 

this process to the areas in question, the equidistant lines are irregular in shape and bisect many 

properties. 

 

In late April 2022, City staff met with staff from the Village of Fox Crossing, Village of 

Greenville, and Town of Grand Chute to simplify the extraterritorial jurisdictions within the 

areas of overlap.  The goal was to establish clear lines that make it easy to understand which 

municipality will perform extraterritorial review for future subdivisions.  Attached are a series of 

maps that identify the areas of overlap, the equidistant lines from municipal boundaries, and the 

proposed “agreed upon” dividing lines to simplify the extraterritorial review areas. 

 

This information is also being presented to the respective Plan Commissions for the Village of 

Fox Crossing and Village of Greenville.  If it is determined that additional steps are needed to 

formalize the process, this information may come back as an action item at a future meeting. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 








	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_City Plan Minutes 5-11-22
	0002_1_ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_EExpressCt_SUP6-22
	0002_2_PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_EExpressCt_SUP6-22
	0003_1_StaffReport_Peak Car Wash_SUP_For06-08-22
	0004_1_StaffMemo_ETJOverlap_For06-08-22
	0004_2_ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_BuffersOnly
	0004_3_ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_EquidistantLines
	0004_4_ETJOverlap_Appleton-FoxCrossing-Greenville_Aerial+SectionLines_AgreedUponLine

